
 
 

VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

SPECIAL MEETING 
 

THURSDAY, MAY 21, 2015 - 7:00 P.M. 
 

VILLAGE HALL BOARD ROOM 
40 E. CENTER AVENUE, LAKE BLUFF, ILLINOIS 

 
A G E N D A  

 

 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
 
2. Consideration of the Minutes from the April 8 and May 13, 2015 HPC Meetings 
 
3. Non-Agenda Items and Visitors 

The Chairperson and Members of the HPC allocate fifteen (15) minutes at this time for those individuals who would 
like the opportunity to address the HPC on any matter within its area of responsibility that is not listed on the agenda.  
Each person addressing the HPC is asked to limit their comments to a maximum of three (3) minutes. 

 
4. An Advisory Review Conference for the Proposed Demolition of the Landmark Home 

Located at 512 Sunrise Avenue 
 

5. An Advisory Review Conference for the Proposed Demolition of the Landmark Home 
Located at 925 N. Sheridan Road 
 

6. A Continued Discussion Regarding Demolition Review and Historic Preservation 
Regulations  

 
7. A Continued Discussion Regarding the History of Neighborhoods in Lake Bluff 

 
8. Chairperson’s Report  

 
9. Staff Report 

 Confirm Next Meeting Date – June 10, 2015 
 
10. Adjournment 
 
 
The Village of Lake Bluff is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Individuals with disabilities 
who plan to attend this meeting and who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this 
meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities, are requested to contact R. Drew Irvin at 234-
0774 or TDD number 234-2153 promptly to allow the Village of Lake Bluff to make reasonable accommodations. 



Page 1 of 4 

VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

APRIL 8, 2015 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

A Regular Meeting of the Historic Preservation Commission (HPC) of the Village of Lake Bluff was called 
to order on March 11, 2015 at 7:05 p.m. in the Village Hall Board Room. 
 
The following members were present: 

 
 Present:   Mary Francoeur  
    Robert Hunter 
    Janie Jerch 
    Randolph Liebelt 
    Janet Nelson, Chair 
 
 Absent:  Paul Bergmann 
    Cheri Richardson  
   

Also Present: Brandon Stanick, Asst. to the Village Administrator (A to VA) 
 
2. Consideration of the Minutes of the March 11, 2015 Historic Preservation Commission Meeting 

Member Francoeur moved to approve the Minutes of the March 11, 2015 HPC Meeting as presented.  
Member Jerch seconded the motion. The motion passed on a unanimous voice vote. 
 

3. Non-Agenda Items and Visitors 
Chair Nelson noted there was no one present for this item.  
 

4. Consideration of a Significant Demolition Application for the Proposed Renovations to 707 
Rockland Avenue 
Chair Nelson introduced the agenda item and noted that this item is classified as a significant demolition 
because their intent is to demolish more than 50 percent of the gross floor area of the structure, although 
not demolish the entire building.  Chair Nelson invited the petitioner to the podium. 
 
Mr. Tom Tennett, owner of 707 Rockland Avenue, stated he has submitted plans to have the roof 
removed and a second floor added to the existing structure.  Space on the first floor will be reallocated 
from three bedrooms and one bath to living space, a larger kitchen and a dining room.  There will be 
three bedrooms and three bathrooms on the second floor with high efficient mechanical systems to 
accommodate their growing family.  Mr. Tennett stated the house currently does not meet the needs of a 
contemporary family.  He stated keeping in Lake Bluff fashion it is a traditional ranch style and fits 
within the character of the neighborhood.  Mr. Tennett stated he is present tonight to ask the HPC to 
terminate the process. 
 
A to VA Stanick stated as the addition of the second floor and changes to the exterior will alter the look, 
a demolition review was triggered.  He stated this is not a complete demolition but a proposed 
renovation. 



Historic Preservation Commission 
April 8, 2015 
 

 
Page 2 of 4 

 
Chair Nelson expressed her understanding the siding on the second floor would change.  Mr. Tennett 
stated that would be the siding on the first and second floors.  The brick would be removed and replaced 
with healthy smart side engineering siding product, light cream in color with high efficiency windows. 
 
Chair Nelson asked for comments from the Commissioners. 
 
Member Jerch expressed her understanding that the main footprint of the home will be maintained and 
only the roof and siding will be altered.  Mr. Tennett stated there will be new windows and mechanical 
systems installed.  He stated everything will be upgraded and noted the house has gone through countless 
renovations and everything has to be restored according to Code.  Mr. Tennett confirmed there will be a 
foundation under the garage area. 
 
Chair Nelson asked if there were any other homes in the area which added a second floor.  Mr. Tennett 
stated there has been approximately five homes along the east side of Rockland Avenue that have added 
a second floor. 
 
Chair Nelson summarized the options available to the HPC.  
 
As there were no further comments from the Commissioners, Member Hunter moved to terminate the 
significant demolition review for 707 Rockland Avenue.  Member Jerch seconded the motion.  The 
motion passed on the following roll call vote: 
 
Ayes: (5) Francoeur, Hunter, Jerch, Liebelt and Chair Nelson   
Nays: (0)  
Absent: (0) Bergmann and Richardson 
 

5. A General Discussion Regarding Demolition Review and Historic Preservation Regulations 
Chair Nelson stated over the course of the last several months we have been faced with some demolition 
reviews where we felt more information was needed before we were able to discuss it appropriately.  
Chair Nelson asked the Commissioners to discuss any additional information they would like to see as a 
requirement of the demolition review process, as well as opine on the Village’s existing Historic 
Preservation regulations. 
 
A to VA Stanick stated there will be a Committee-of-the-Whole (COW) agenda item on Monday, April 
13th regarding various items as a result of the 400 E. Center Avenue and 925 N. Sheridan Road petitions, 
one of which is the historic preservation regulations, the subdivision of lots on the east side, single-
family residential design review and a review of the Village’s bulk standards to determine if the Village 
is comfortable with its current standards. 
 
A discussion concerning these issues followed. 
 
Chair Nelson expressed her understanding that many of the lots on the east side started off 25 ft. wide 
before the zoning regulations were implemented and property owners were selling portions of their 
property to their neighbors which resulted in some very odd shaped lots. 
 
A discussion concerning the Village’s existing demolition application and demolition review regulations 
followed. 



Historic Preservation Commission 
April 8, 2015 
 

 
Page 3 of 4 

 
A to VA Stanick stated he included in the packet a request to review some comparable surrounding 
North Shore communities building permit applications to see what information they require with a 
proposed demolition. 
 
Chair Nelson expressed her thought to make the demolition permit process more thorough so that the 
HPC is aware there has been some thought given to renovating the house. As of now all that is required 
is the contractor’s information for the demolition.  Chair Nelson expressed her preference to see a map 
showing the location of the building to be demolished with reference to neighborhood properties, a legal 
description of the property, photographs of all building elevations, a description of the building, the 
structure portions thereof proposed for demolition, the reason for the proposed demolition and data 
supporting the reasons.  In addition she noted her preference to require a justification from the property 
owner why it is not financially feasible to rehabilitate the house. 
 
Members Jerch and Liebelt expressed their favor with Chair Nelson’s suggestions.  Member Jerch 
expressed her preference for a buyer delay process. 
   
Member Jerch expressed her agreement with Chair Nelson of implementing a longer delay period. 
 
Member Hunter stated a two year delay could amount to a substantial penalty to the owner and create a 
financial burden. 
 
Chair Nelson stated the longer delay period would have property owners think harder about demolition.  
Chair Nelson expressed a desire to understand how the proposed demolition would affect the streetscape. 
 
Member Hunter asked how you strike a balance between a homeowners that wants to improve the house 
and a developer’s profit motive. 
 
Member Francoeur expressed interest in a larger delay period. 
 
A to VA Stanick stated the initial delay is 90 days and the HPC has the choice to extend the delay to 120 
days. A discussion ensued regarding the redevelopment of smaller lots. 
 
Chair Nelson expressed her belief that Lake Bluff is a better market for teardowns and that is what 
should be changed.  A discussion ensued regarding the bulk of homes in Lake Bluff. 
 
A to VA Stanick stated having this information, which is already solicited by the HPC, upfront is 
consistent with current practice.  Having the information codified would make it a requirement and not 
just a guideline. 
 
Member Hunter expressed his opinion that design review is needed and then briefly described the review 
process being performed on new spec homes in town. 
 
Following a discussion of the information the HPC expressed its preference to require the following 
information be submitted with building permit application for demolition: 

 Plat of survey (includes legal description); 
 Elevation pictures of existing; 
 Neighborhood aerial map; 



Historic Preservation Commission 
April 8, 2015 
 

 
Page 4 of 4 

 Prepared statement financial analysis comparing the costs to rehab and the cost to demolish and 
rebuild; 

 Elevation drawings of the new house; 
 A written description of the research on the house conducted by the owner and why the home 

does not qualify for landmark status; 
 A tree survey; 
 An estimate to relocate structure proposed for demolition;  
 A statement asking the property owners how best to preserve the Village’s character. 

 
The HPC also discussed the benefit of requiring a notice is issued when a landmark goes on the market 
to require the full disclosure that its a landmark. 
 
It was the consensus of the HPC to ask Staff to amend the building permit application for demolition and 
share a draft during the next meeting. 
 

6. A Continued Discussion Regarding the History of Neighborhoods in Lake Bluff 
 
The HPC continued its consideration of the matter to its next meeting. 
 

7. Chairperson’s Report 
Chair Nelson announced that a Historic Preservation Workshop is scheduled for May 13, 2015 at 7:00 
p.m. and noted it will focus on the Tax Assessment Freeze Program administered by the Illinois Historic 
Preservation Agency and the benefits offered by Lake Bluff.  Chair Nelson suggested landmark 
homeowners and local realtors be invited to the workshop. 
 

8. Staff Report 
A to VA Stanick reported there may be another HPC Regular meeting scheduled for the month of May as 
the Historic Preservation Workshop meeting is scheduled for the regular meeting on May 13th.  
 

9. Adjournment 
As there was no further business to come before the Commission, Member Hunter moved to close the 
meeting.  Member Francoeur seconded the motion.  The motion was approved on a unanimous voice vote 
and the meeting adjourned at 8:29 p.m.  
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Brandon Stanick 
Asst. to the Village Administrator  



Page 1 of 1 

VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

MAY 13, 2015 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 
On May 13, 2015 the Lake Bluff Historic Preservation Commission hosted a community workshop 
regarding the financial benefits available to owners of local Lake Bluff landmarks. The workshop started at 
7:00 p.m. in the Village Hall Board Room and the following HPC Commissioners were present 

 
 Present:   Paul Bergmann 
    Mary Francoeur  
    Robert Hunter 
    Janie Jerch 
    Cheri Richardson 
    Janet Nelson, Chair 
 
 Absent:  Randolph Liebelt  
   

Also Present: Brandon Stanick, Asst. to the Village Administrator (A to VA) 
 
Chair Nelson welcomed the attendees to the workshop and provided a brief history of the Village, as 
well as introduced the presenters for the evening. Ms. Carol Dyson, Chief Architect & Deputy State 
Historic Preservation Officer (Illinois Historic Preservation Agency), presented information regarding 
the Illinois Property Tax Freeze Program.  Ms. Lisa DiChiera, Director of Advocacy (Landmarks 
Illinois), presented information relating the organization’s façade easement program.  The third 
presentation was conducted by Brandon Stanick, Asst. to the Village Administrator (Village of Lake 
Bluff), and focused on the financial benefits offered by the Village that are available to Lake Bluff 
property owners.  
 
The community workshop concluded at approximately 8:30 p.m.  
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Brandon Stanick 
Asst. to the Village Administrator  



VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
 

Memorandum 
 

To:  Chair Nelson and Members of the Historic Preservation Commission 
 

From:  Brandon J. Stanick, Assistant to the Village Administrator 
 

Subject: Agenda Item #4 – Advisory Review Conference for the Proposed Demolition 
of the Landmark Designated Structure Located at 512 Sunrise Avenue  

 

Date:  May 15, 2015 
 

OWNER: Brian and Julie Schmucker 

LOCATION: 512 Sunrise Avenue 

DATE RECEIVED: April 10, 2015 

REQUIRED ACTION: Advisory Review Conference with Property Owner 
Concerning Proposed Demolition of 512 Sunrise Avenue 

APPLICABLE REGULATIONS: 
Ordinance #2006-13 (Landmark Ordinance) 
Section 9-14-1 of the Municipal Code (Purpose and Goals) 
Section 9-14-6 of the Municipal Code (Advisory Review) 

 
Summary: 
On April 10, 2015 the Village of Lake Bluff received a building permit application for the 
complete demolition of the landmark designated house located at 512 Sunrise Avenue.  As this is 
a landmark designated structure (pursuant to Ordinance #2006-13), the owner is required to 
participate in the Advisory Review Process.  The purpose of this Process is to ascertain the 
extent to which the proposed work is consistent or inconsistent with the purpose and goals of the 
Historic Preservation Chapter of the Municipal Code (Section 9-14-1) and conduct an Advisory 
Review Conference with the owner.  In conducting an Advisory Review Conference, the HPC 
shall consider and urge the owner to incorporate into the proposed work the criteria outlined in 
Section 9-14-6C of the Municipal Code.  The time for the Advisory Review period is 120 days 
from the time the building permit application for demolition is received.  This advisory review 
period will end on August 8, 2015 (participation is required) after which time the demolition 
permit may be issued.   
 

 
 
 
 



Recommended HPC Action: 
It is recommended the HPC conduct an Advisory Review Conference with the owner(s) using 
the criteria in Section 9-14-6C of the Municipal Code, and seek a mutually satisfactory 
resolution of the Commission’s concerns.  
 
Attached Documents: 

A. Building Permit Application for Demolition and Aerial Map;  
B. Landmark Ordinance #2006-13; 
C. Municipal Code Section 9-14-1 (Purpose & Goals); and 
D. Municipal Code Section 9-14-6 (Advisory Review). 

 
If you should have any questions regarding the information provided in this memorandum, 
please feel free to contact me at 847-283-6889. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



bstanick
Text Box
ATTACHMENT A



Lake County, Illinois

Lake County
Department of Information Technology
18 N County St
Waukegan IL 60085
(847) 377-2373

100 ft

Map Printed on 5/16/2015

Geographic Information System

Tax Parcels
Parcel 1221221019 is outlined.

¯
Selected Features:
Various Tax Parcels

Disclaimer: The selected feature may not occur anywhere in the current map extent.  A Registered Land Surveyor should be consulted to determine the precise location of property boundarieson the ground. This map does not constitute a regulatory determination and is not a base for engineering design.  This map is intended to be viewed and printed in color.

bstanick
Text Box
Both 506 and 512 Sunrise are owned by the Schmukers



bstanick
Text Box
ATTACHMENT B





























bstanick
Text Box
ATTACHMENTS  C  &  D











VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
 

Memorandum 
 

To:  Chair Nelson and Members of the Historic Preservation Commission 
 

From:  Brandon J. Stanick, Assistant to the Village Administrator 
 

Subject: Agenda Item #5 – Advisory Review Conference for the Proposed Demolition 
of the Landmark Designated Structure Located at 925 N. Sheridan Rd.  

 

Date:  May 15, 2015 
 

OWNER: Estate of Edward M. Blair 

LOCATION: 925 N. Sheridan Road 

DATE RECEIVED: April 20, 2015 

REQUIRED ACTION: Advisory Review Conference with Property Owner 
Concerning Proposed Demolition of 925 N. Sheridan Road

APPLICABLE REGULATIONS: 
Ordinance #2015-04 (Landmark Ordinance) 
Section 9-14-1 of the Municipal Code (Purpose and Goals) 
Section 9-14-6 of the Municipal Code (Advisory Review) 

 
Summary: 
On April 20, 2015 the Village of Lake Bluff received a building permit application for the 
complete demolition of the landmark designated house located at 925 N. Sheridan Road.  As this 
is a landmark designated structure (pursuant to Ordinance #2015-04), the owner is required to 
participate in the Advisory Review Process.  The purpose of this Process is to ascertain the 
extent to which the proposed work is consistent or inconsistent with the purpose and goals of the 
Historic Preservation Chapter of the Municipal Code (Section 9-14-1) and conduct an Advisory 
Review Conference with the owner.  In conducting an Advisory Review Conference, the HPC 
shall consider and urge the owner to incorporate into the proposed work the criteria outlined in 
Section 9-14-6C of the Municipal Code. 
 

 
 
Recommended HPC Action: 
It is recommended the HPC conduct an Advisory Review Conference with the owner’s 
representative legal counsel, Bob O’Neil and Michael Allen, using the criteria in Section 9-14-
6C of the Municipal Code, and seek a mutually satisfactory resolution of the Commission’s 
concerns.  
 



Attached Documents: 
A. Building Permit Application for Demolition and Aerial Map;  
B. Landmark Ordinance #2015-04 (a complete copy of the application will be made 

available online at: http://www.lakebluff.org/government/meeting-packets-and-
videos;  

C. Municipal Code Section 9-14-1 (Purpose & Goals); and 
D. Municipal Code Section 9-14-6 (Advisory Review). 

 
If you should have any questions regarding the information provided in this memorandum, 
please feel free to contact me at 847-283-6889. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



bstanick
Text Box
ATTACHMENT A



Lake County, Illinois

Lake County
Department of Information Technology
18 N County St
Waukegan IL 60085
(847) 377-2373

400 ft

Map Printed on 5/16/2015

Geographic Information System

Tax Parcels
 

¯
 

Disclaimer: The selected feature may not occur anywhere in the current map extent.  A Registered Land Surveyor should be consulted to determine the precise location of property boundarieson the ground. This map does not constitute a regulatory determination and is not a base for engineering design.  This map is intended to be viewed and printed in color.



bstanick
Text Box
ATTACHMENT B



















































































































































































































































































































































Recipient: The Lake Bluff Illinois Historic Preservation Commission and Village Board.

Letter: Greetings,

Save Keck and Keck's Historic Blair House in Lake Bluff, IL

bstanick
Typewritten Text
Received on 3/19/15by Ellie Crouch



Comments

Name Location Date Comment

Kari Nichols Coloma, MI 2015-03-02 I think it's important to preserve our history through architecture.

Susan kleine Savannah, GA 2015-03-02 i lived in LB for 8 years and love the house.

jed slaughter berwyn, IL 2015-03-02 the midwest has very few examples of significant modern architecture. This

home deserves a place in history.

Liz Bruckner Libertyville, IL 2015-03-02 I am a keck and keck homeowner

Amy Carter Munster, IN 2015-03-02 Our architectural heritage needs to be preserved. Keck + Keck are among

Chicago's most important and progressive practitioners of modernist

architecture. Their legacy is still having an impact on those designing and

building today and their work is even more relevant now. We have lost too

many examples of mid-century modern residential architecture. Once it is gone,

it is lost forever. Chicago is know the world over for important post-war modern

architecture and design. Other cities have embraced their built history. It is a

crime against our culture to destroy important works like the Blair house.

Dennis Everson Lincolnwood, IL 2015-03-02 This is an American treasure. We simply cannot afford to let this go!

Melissa kliesch Chicago, IL 2015-03-02 architecture is history, tearing it down is wiping out history

tamara bohorquez chicago, IL 2015-03-02 We should save good design.

Helen Kales ann arbor, MI 2015-03-02 We need to stop destroying beautiful mid century gems to build mcmansion

monstrosities.

Michael Howard Atlanta, GA 2015-03-03 I'm sgining because I feel the home has architectural significance that's

irreplaceable and must be studied and enjoyed by architects and the public. Is

it too important to be lost!!!!

Kim  Stewart LA, CA 2015-03-03 This is a historical treasure

Yvonne Steinwold Lake Forest, IL 2015-03-03 we need to preserve history not destroy it

Holly Dennis Sarasota, FL 2015-03-03 This gem should be saved

Benjamin Becker tewksbury, MA 2015-03-03 These buildings represent the golden age of American architecture.

Bee Campbell-Raymond Halifax, Canada 2015-03-03 I can't believe demolishing this would even be an option.

Emily Kleine Elwyn Saint Petersburg, FL 2015-03-03 I am a professional historic preservationist and  grew up in Lake Bluff.  My

career was inspired by the tremendous sense of place in the town.  I returned

last week for the first time in nearly 20 years, and was so pleased to see

preservation in action and the beauty of the town preserved.  The Blair house is

truly and important part of the fabric of the city.  Please landmark this structure.

With the renewed interest in mid-century architecture an appropriate buyer will

be found.

Jared Sebby Sevierville, TN 2015-03-03 I'm signing because this house is too architecturally significant to be

demolished, and the demolition of it would irreversibly erase a Chicago

landmark forever. Houses like this deserve to be maintained for future

generations.

Candy Hart Cumby, TX 2015-03-03 This is beautiful architecture, please don't demolish history!

Natalie Ramos Clovis, CA 2015-03-03 Our history should be preserved.

emma heys Birmingham, United

Kingdom

2015-03-03 Architecture is art

Liz BUre barrington, IL 2015-03-03 Tearing this down would be short sighted and foolish.



Name Location Date Comment

andy jennings Madison, WI 2015-03-03 This house has historic value and should not be bulldozed just so someone can

make more money.

Jeffrey Sharp Nashville, TN 2015-03-03 I strongly believe in preserving architectural history.

David Andrews Chicago, IL 2015-03-03 It's important to people I know.

Neal DeVries Chicago, IL 2015-03-03 It's beautiful!

Karel Proot Veurne, Belgium 2015-03-03 It's a shame

Kevin McCullough Chicago, IL 2015-03-04 Outstanding example of midcentury residential architecture

Molly Browe Waukegan, IL 2015-03-04 Please preserve the past by saving the significant  homes that represent the

best of an era!

Barbara Reeder Lawrenceville, NJ 2015-03-06 my friend Herman asked me to !

Edith Radmussen Ahern Lake Forest, IL 2015-03-06 this beautiful and historic building should be preserved!

Lindsey Ragsdale Lake Forest, IL 2015-03-06 I think it's important to preserve history

Luki Sumner-Rooney Cambridge, ENG 2015-03-09 /r/Mid_Century!

Alison Fisher Chicago, IL 2015-03-10 Very few modern homes of this era survive, and this one is among the best.

Thomas Harboe Chicago, IL 2015-03-10 It is a very important house by two of Chicago's most important modern

architects.

Michelle Burke Chicago, IL 2015-03-11 Eritage.We must stop developers from destroying our architectural

David Schure Princeton, NJ 2015-03-11 I serve on a local board, the Princeton Historic Preservation Commission,

which is also facing challenges to mid-century modern houses that are not fully

appreciated yet. We need to stand up for these designs.

Cecelia Tazelaar Princeton, NJ 2015-03-11 I agree with David Schure. Please do not demolish this house!

Eric O'Malley Lisle, IL 2015-03-11 I care about preserving our region's Modern cultural heritage.

John Eifler Chicago, IL 2015-03-11 Keck and Keck are architects of international significance - works like these are

what makes Chicago special

Janet Halstead Evanston, IL 2015-03-11 This is an important mid-century modern house by important architects and

deserving of  special consideration.

William Kissinger Oak Park, IL 2015-03-12 it is the right thing to do!

William Kissinger Oak Park, IL 2015-03-12 it is the right thing to do!

AJ Tobis Lansing, IL 2015-03-12 This gem is too beautiful to demolish!

Breen Inkmann Lake Forest, IL 2015-03-12 We need to preserve our past!

Eric Ingram Universal City, CA 2015-03-12 Signing because we need to preserve this historic property!

DEL PARRA Libertyville, IL 2015-03-12 Historic places are important.

Lauren benson Libertyville, IL 2015-03-12 Beautiful structures should not be torn down for new architecture.  This would

be a crime to tear down.

James Calderaro Rockville Centre, NY 2015-03-13 It's an important example of our architectural culture.

Karen Connell Chicago, IL 2015-03-13 George Keck was an important architect- designing two models at the 1933

World Exhibition, an early pioneer of solar housing, and a teacher at the

Bauhaus School. This house is a wonderful example of his modernist, glass

work and I do not want to see it razed.

Jory Cathlina Westfield, IN 2015-03-13 I believe that the integrity of a community can be compromised when it's history

is allowed to be erased on the promise of bigger, newer, better. What gives

Lake Bluff it's much loved small town idyll has everything to do with its history

and to bulldoze that in this instance or the next is a mistake.



Name Location Date Comment

brittany marsch Palatine, IL 2015-03-13 From Lake bluff.

Kay Butler Lake Forest, IL 2015-03-14 This is a landmark house which needs to be preserved of a special era in

Illinois history.

sophie carlisle Evanston, IL 2015-03-14 Architecture is an important cultural legacy. I grew in that community and want

to see it preserve its landmarks.

Kathleen Kasprzak Lake Bluff, IL 2015-03-17 I live at Crab Tree Farm.  I've been in this home.  I believe that it should be

preserved as it is and in celebration amongst the David Adler buildings as well

as Crab Tree Farm proper.  Support the Historical relevance of this Landmark!

Judith Wolford chicago, IL 2015-03-17 Architecture is the only "art" that we can live within and interact with on a very

personal level.

Michael Kelly Barrington, IL 2015-03-17 Keck homes are a significant part of architectural history. The home should be

preserved as a historical landmark.

brian mattes chicago, IL 2015-03-17 the house deserves landmark status!

Dionne Harrell Chicago, IL 2015-03-17 Beauty should be preserved

Danina Becker West Chicago, IL 2015-03-17 I'm signing because I believe this beautiful home should be saved. There are a

limited supply of these Mid Century homes and the style is just hitting it's

popularity. What a waste if this home is destroyed.

Amber Katzberger Homewood, IL 2015-03-17 We need to preserve our history!

francesca lanuza highland park, IL 2015-03-17 This would be so horrible.

Cheryl Runge Chicago, IL 2015-03-17 This property is a historically significant treasure, and will eventually draw a

passionately interested buyer happy to preserve and restore it. Please give it,

and the economy, more time, and designate it a landmark.

Mary LeRoy Kankakee, IL 2015-03-18 It's so important to preserve mid century history. Think about all the historical

buildings that have been demolished and regretted. Don't make this mistake!

Jessica Driscoll Chicago, IL 2015-03-18 Preserve Mid Century!

Christopher Beauchamp Chicago, IL 2015-03-18 it's essential to preserve history!



1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33

A B C D E F
Name City State Zip Code Country Signed On

kati murphy United States 3/2/2015
Ellie Crouch nottoli Lake Forest Illinois 60045 United States 3/2/2015
Jessica muller Lake Forest Illinois 60045 United States 3/2/2015
Megan Howland long grove Illinois 60047 United States 3/2/2015
Cyndi Winsor Lake Bluff Illinois 60044 United States 3/2/2015
Kari Nichols Coloma Michigan 49038 United States 3/2/2015
Elena Morris Mundelein Illinois 60060 United States 3/2/2015
David Lidstrom Libertyville Illinois 60048 United States 3/2/2015
Stephanie Kinser McHenry Illinois 60051 United States 3/2/2015
Sara Stephenson Grayslake Illinois 60030 United States 3/2/2015
meryl mcmahon Lake Forest Illinois 60045 United States 3/2/2015
Susan kleine Savannah Georgia 31411 United States 3/2/2015
Jed slaughter Berwyn Illinois 60402 United States 3/2/2015
Megan beidler Lake Forest Illinois 60045 United States 3/2/2015
Breen Tivnan Inkmann Lake Forest Illinois 60045 United States 3/2/2015
Lindsey chabraja Lake Forest Illinois 60045 United States 3/2/2015
Monica Yaun Lake Forest Illinois 60045 United States 3/2/2015
Liz Bruckner Libertyville Illinois 60048 United States 3/2/2015
JennInfer lucas Elgin Illinois 60123 United States 3/2/2015
astrid laimins Chicago Illinois 60641 United States 3/2/2015
Concerned Citizen New City New York 10956‐2406 United States 3/2/2015
Amy Carter Munster Indiana 46321 United States 3/2/2015
Lisa Mayntz Oswego Illinois 60543 United States 3/2/2015
Nancy Allard Lake Forest Illinois 60045 United States 3/2/2015
James Jagel Essex Illinois 60935 United States 3/2/2015
Mary Sherman Lake Forest Illinois 60045 United States 3/2/2015
Dennis Everson Lincolnwood Illinois 60712 United States 3/2/2015
Chad Bracke chicago Illinois 60616 United States 3/2/2015
Roger Flammang Chicago Illinois 60645 United States 3/2/2015
Ellana De Fina Saint Charles Illinois 60174 United States 3/2/2015
Christa Chockley Hanover Park Illinois 60133 United States 3/2/2015
Victoria Pater Chicago Illinois 60647 United States 3/2/2015



34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66

A B C D E F
caroline thorpe Chicago Illinois 60607 United States 3/2/2015
Melissa kliesch chicago Illinois 60641 United States 3/2/2015
Kevin Creed Westchester Illinois 60154 United States 3/2/2015
Ben Kenon St. Charles Illinois 60174 United States 3/2/2015
Jonathan Burden Oak Park Illinois 60301 United States 3/2/2015
tamara bohorquez Chicago Illinois 60622 United States 3/2/2015
Christopher Wolf Chicago Illinois 69614 United States 3/2/2015
helen kales Ann Arbor Michigan 48104 United States 3/2/2015
carin brown Kennewick Washington 99336 United States 3/2/2015
Tony Farrino Miami Florida 33138 United States 3/2/2015
Barbara griggs Portland Oregon 97225 United States 3/2/2015
Chelsey Urdahl Fort Collins Colorado 80524 United States 3/2/2015
Grace Ragsdale Lake Bluff Illinois 60044 United States 3/3/2015
Michael Howard Atlanta Georgia 30318 United States 3/3/2015
Kim Stewart LA California 90029 United States 3/3/2015
Lisa Gilcrest Lake Forest Illinois 60045 United States 3/3/2015
Lauren Preisen Chicago Illinois 60646 United States 3/3/2015
Yvonne Steinwold Lake Forest Illinois 60045 United States 3/3/2015
Kate schaffer Chicago Illinois 60647 United States 3/3/2015
Alison Bastianelli Lake Bluff Illinois 60044 United States 3/3/2015
Carrie Tilmann Denver Colorado 80231 United States 3/3/2015
Tim Wilson Chicago Illinois 60611 United States 3/3/2015
Eliza Tarter Chicago Illinois 60609 United States 3/3/2015
Pamela Taylor Normal Illinois 61761 United States 3/3/2015
Jennifer sontag Lake Bluff Illinois 60044 United States 3/3/2015
Holly Dennis Sarasota Florida 34237 United States 3/3/2015
Benjamin Becker Somerville Massachusetts 2144 United States 3/3/2015
Jeffrey Rivers Lynnwood Washington 98036 United States 3/3/2015
Bee Campbell‐Raymond Halifax B3H 2Y5 Canada 3/3/2015
C crouch Lake Bluff Illinois 60044 United States 3/3/2015
Emily Kleine Elwyn Saint Petersburg Florida 33704 United States 3/3/2015
Ashley Satkowski Monroe Michigan 48162 United States 3/3/2015
Jared Sebby Sevierville Tennessee 37876 United States 3/3/2015



67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99

A B C D E F
Drew Flurer Bismarck North Dakota 58501 United States 3/3/2015
Amy Peterson Glencoe Illinois 60022 United States 3/3/2015
Teddy Rine Libertyville Illinois 60048 United States 3/3/2015
Andrew Fowler Atlanta Georgia 30327 United States 3/3/2015
Jane Weight Batavia Illinois 60510 United States 3/3/2015
Candy Hart Cumby Texas 75433 United States 3/3/2015
Corey Ingram Bloomington Illinois 61701 United States 3/3/2015
Stacey Mazur Algonquin Illinois 60102 United States 3/3/2015
J grace Richmond Virginia 23220 United States 3/3/2015
Natalie Ramos Clovis California 93619 United States 3/3/2015
Diane Citrin Chicago Illinois 60045 United States 3/3/2015
emma h Birmingham England B18 5RQ United Kingdom 3/3/2015
Andrew Dixon Oklahoma City Oklahoma 73120 United States 3/3/2015
Liz BUre barrington Illinois 60010 United States 3/3/2015
Branson Kellen Saint Louis Missouri 63109 United States 3/3/2015
David Erickson Chicago Illinois 60645 United States 3/3/2015
Nicolas Glenn Saint Petersburg Florida 33701 United States 3/3/2015
Victoria Shaw‐Williamson New York New York 10011 United States 3/3/2015
Kathryn Welsh Redondo Beach California 90277 United States 3/3/2015
Marty Seymour Cedar Park Texas 78613 United States 3/3/2015
Mary Jo Mohr‐Mann Lake Forest Illinois 60045 United States 3/3/2015
Ryan Bastianelli Lake Bluff Illinois 60044 United States 3/3/2015
jeremy ramsey West Des Moines Iowa 50265 United States 3/3/2015
Ria Murray Metuchen New Jersey 8840 United States 3/3/2015
Jennifer Maag Saint Louis Missouri 63139 United States 3/3/2015
Barri Gapp Northfield Illinois 60093 United States 3/3/2015
andy jennings Madison Wisconsin 53715 United States 3/3/2015
Jeffrey Sharp Wauwatosa Wisconsin 53213 United States 3/3/2015
David Andrews Chicago Illinois 60618 United States 3/3/2015
Neal DeVries Chicago Illinois 60647 United States 3/3/2015
Karel Proot Veurne Belgium 3/3/2015
Matthew Asti Brooklyn New York 11213 United States 3/3/2015
Joe Kunkel Olympia Fields Illinois 60461 United States 3/3/2015



100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132

A B C D E F
sam nguyen Lancaster Pennsylvania 17602 United States 3/3/2015
Carlos Cuesta San Francisco California 94110 United States 3/3/2015
Courtney White Austin Texas 78741 United States 3/3/2015
susan conger‐austin Chicago Illinois 60610 United States 3/3/2015
John R. Young and James P. Higgins East Norriton Pennsylvania 19401‐1531 United States 3/3/2015
Shannon McKay Fredericksburg Virginia 22401 United States 3/3/2015
Taylor Allread Chico California 95926 United States 3/3/2015
Herman Wilkins Universal City California 91608 United States 3/3/2015
Kevin McCullough Chicago Illinois 60612 United States 3/4/2015
Amber Young Ocean View Delaware 19970 United States 3/4/2015
Mark Sherman Lake Forest Illinois 60045 United States 3/4/2015
kelly caldwell Homewood Illinois 60430 United States 3/4/2015
Molly Browe Waukegan Illinois 60079 United States 3/4/2015
Jane Donovan Chicago Illinois 60657 United States 3/4/2015
Mike Giannoni Matteson Illinois 60443 United States 3/5/2015
Nicole Chamberlain Rockland Maine 4841 United States 3/5/2015
June Eubanks Chicago Illinois 60614 United States 3/6/2015
Nicole Pazos Metairie Louisiana 70003 United States 3/6/2015
Emma Sinclair Olympia Washington 98501 United States 3/6/2015
Jannelle Molina Oakland California 94605 United States 3/6/2015
Barbara Reeder Lawrence Township New Jersey 8648 United States 3/6/2015
Edith Radmussen Ahern Lake Forest Illinois 60045 United States 3/6/2015
Lindsey Ragsdale Lake Forest Illinois 60045 United States 3/6/2015
Devin Barrett Chicago Illinois 60614 United States 3/7/2015
Alison Buck Lake Forest Illinois 60045 United States 3/7/2015
Lauren Black Liverpool England L17 7DT United Kingdom 3/7/2015
Kristine Thorsen Lake Forest Illinois 60045 United States 3/7/2015
Luki Sumner‐Rooney Cambridge England cb2 9ne United Kingdom 3/9/2015
Alison Fisher Chicago Illinois 60613 United States 3/10/2015
Thomas Harboe Chicago Illinois 60603 United States 3/10/2015
Jane O'Neil Lake Bluff Illinois 60044 United States 3/10/2015
Douglas Gilbert Oak Park Illinois 60302 United States 3/10/2015
Catherine Becker Chicago Illinois 60622 United States 3/10/2015



133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165

A B C D E F
Birgitte Normolle Chicago Illinois 60614 United States 3/10/2015
Pauline saliga Chicago Illinois 60610 United States 3/10/2015
Michelle Burke Chicago Illinois 60643 United States 3/11/2015
Daniel Nearing Chicago Illinois 60625 United States 3/11/2015
Brad White Chicago Illinois 60601 United States 3/11/2015
Becky Ficarella Glen Ellyn Illinois 60137 United States 3/11/2015
David Schure Princeton New Jersey 8540 United States 3/11/2015
Andrea Matlak Chicago Illinois 60614 United States 3/11/2015
Harris Miller Morton Grove Illinois 60053 United States 3/11/2015
Darius Mikrut Lake Bluff Illinois 60044 United States 3/11/2015
Cecelia Tazelaar Princeton New Jersey 8540 United States 3/11/2015
Jean Follett Wheaton Illinois 60189 United States 3/11/2015
Eric OMalley Glen Ellyn Illinois 60137 United States 3/11/2015
John Eifler Chicago Illinois 60604 United States 3/11/2015
Janet Halstead Evanston Illinois 60201 United States 3/11/2015
Kate Winston Chicago Illinois 60657 United States 3/11/2015
frank gruger Highland Park Illinois 60035 United States 3/11/2015
William Kissinger Oak Park Illinois 60302 United States 3/12/2015
Tina Giebelhausen Chicago Illinois 60625 United States 3/12/2015
Shuva Tobis Homewood Illinois 60430 United States 3/12/2015
Leif Forre Waukegan Illinois 60085 United States 3/12/2015
Carol Madey Downers Grove Illinois 60515‐4937 United States 3/12/2015
Edmund Newman Silver Spring Maryland 20910 United States 3/12/2015
Sharon Wheeler Chicago Illinois 60610 United States 3/12/2015
Deb Glascott Downers Grove Illinois 60515 United States 3/12/2015
Bella nottoli Denver Colorado 80222 United States 3/12/2015
Eric Ingram Universal City California 91608 United States 3/12/2015
DEL PARRA Libertyville Illinois 60048 United States 3/12/2015
Josh Harkay Eagle Colorado 81631 United States 3/12/2015
Kate Mursau Lake Forest Illinois 60045 United States 3/12/2015
Lauren benson Libertyville Illinois 60048 United States 3/12/2015
Dylan cook Edwards Colorado 81632 United States 3/12/2015
James Calderaro Rockville Centre New York 11570 United States 3/12/2015



166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198

A B C D E F
Amanda Bingham South Kingstown Rhode Island 2879 United States 3/13/2015
Scott Nagle Chicago Illinois 60657 United States 3/13/2015
Steve Parsons Chicago Illinois 60631 United States 3/13/2015
Skaiste Tarnauskas Lemont Illinois 60439 United States 3/13/2015
Nancy Bartell Kildeer Illinois 60047 United States 3/13/2015
Michael Tobin Highland Park Illinois 60035 United States 3/13/2015
Chris Wilson 4034 Australia 3/13/2015
Karen Connell Lake Forest Illinois 60045 United States 3/13/2015
Lisa Musgrsve Frankfort Michigan 49635 United States 3/13/2015
Jory Cathlina Westfield Indiana 46074 United States 3/13/2015
brittany marsch Palatine Illinois 60038 United States 3/13/2015
d mabrey Lake Bluff Illinois 60044 United States 3/13/2015
Camille EPIÉ 35000 France 3/13/2015
Kate Brown Island Lake Illinois 60042 United States 3/13/2015
Melissa Ackerson Lake Bluff Illinois 60044 United States 3/14/2015
Lisa smyth Lake Forest Illinois 60045 United States 3/14/2015
Kay Butler Lake Forest Illinois 60045 United States 3/14/2015
sophie carlisle Evanston Illinois 60202 United States 3/14/2015
Gregory Rackow Chicago Illinois 60657 United States 3/16/2015
Bonny Davidson Mt. Prospect Illinois 60056 United States 3/16/2015
Brad Davidson Mount Prospect Illinois 60056 United States 3/16/2015
Kathleen Kasprzak Lake Bluff Illinois 60044 United States 3/17/2015
Judith Wolford Chicago Illinois 60637 United States 3/17/2015
Brittany Campbell Chicago Illinois 60642 United States 3/17/2015
Heather Cary Chicago Illinois 60647 United States 3/17/2015
Maciej Skoczylas Akron Ohio 44333 United States 3/17/2015
Duygu Karadeniz Milwaukee Wisconsin 53211 United States 3/17/2015
Michael Jeffords Clarendon Hills Illinois 60514 United States 3/17/2015
kymm chavers berwyn Illinois 60402 United States 3/17/2015
Megan Markowski Chicago Illinois 60657 United States 3/17/2015
Michael Kelly Barrington Illinois 60010 United States 3/17/2015
Emily jones Indianapolis Indiana 46256 United States 3/17/2015
brian mattes Chicago Illinois 60660 United States 3/17/2015



199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231

A B C D E F
Dionne Harrell Chicago Illinois 60619 United States 3/17/2015
Danina Becker West Chicago Illinois 60185 United States 3/17/2015
Amber Katzberger Homewood Illinois 60430 United States 3/17/2015
Elizabeth Riegle Chicago Illinois 60613 United States 3/17/2015
Sara Jatcko Chicago Illinois 60640 United States 3/17/2015
Megan Sauter Chicago Illinois 60640 United States 3/17/2015
tim tierney Chicago Illinois 60647 United States 3/17/2015
Matthew Ephraim Chicago Illinois 60640 United States 3/17/2015
Francesca lanuza Highland Park Illinois 60035 United States 3/17/2015
Jacqui Raff Chicago Illinois 60613 United States 3/17/2015
shannon Brehm Chicago Illinois 60647 United States 3/17/2015
tim jones Indianapolis Indiana 46256 United States 3/17/2015
renae dePerio Portage Indiana 46368 United States 3/17/2015
Amanda Storin Cary Illinois 60013 United States 3/17/2015
Erika rieser Lake Forest Illinois 60045 United States 3/17/2015
Patricia beno Utica Michigan 48315 United States 3/17/2015
Ronee bergman Chicago Illinois 60613 United States 3/17/2015
Blair Weigle Ciesil Charlottesville Virginia 22901 United States 3/17/2015
Matt zwicky Chicago Illinois 60614 United States 3/17/2015
Cheryl Runge Chicago Illinois 60707 United States 3/17/2015
Ashley Poskin Sterling Illinois 61081 United States 3/17/2015
Geno Tazioli Lake Bluff Illinois 60044 United States 3/17/2015
Bryanna McNeal Chicago Illinois 60637 United States 3/17/2015
Sarah Stodard Lake Bluff Illinois 60044 United States 3/17/2015
Dan Bryant Lake Bluff Illinois 60044 United States 3/17/2015
Melissa von Bjal Highland Park Illinois 60035 United States 3/17/2015
Sherie Jorgensen Prospect Heights Illinois 60070 United States 3/17/2015
Hannah Duffy Chicago Illinois 60613 United States 3/17/2015
Erica Janssen Bridgeview Illinois 60455 United States 3/18/2015
Byron Lanuza Highland Park Illinois 60035 United States 3/18/2015
Mary LeRoy Kankakee Illinois 60901 United States 3/18/2015
Jess Driscoll Chicago Illinois 60640 United States 3/18/2015
Holly Meeks Lake Forest Illinois 60045 United States 3/18/2015



bstanick
Typewritten Text
Received on 3/19/2015by Ellie Crouch













































bstanick
Text Box
ATTACHMENTS  C  &  D











  

VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
 

Memorandum 
 
To:  Chair Nelson and Members of the Historic Preservation Commission 
 
From:  Brandon J. Stanick, Assistant to the Village Administrator 
 
Date:  May 15, 2015 
 
Subject: Agenda Item #6 – Discussion Regarding Building Permit Applications and Historic 

Preservation Regulations  
 
Following the recent petitions regarding the significant demolition review of 400 E. Center Avenue 
and the landmark nomination application for 925 N. Sheridan Rd. (Blair House), the Historic 
Preservation Commission (HPC) has expressed interest in: 
 

 Updating the Village’s building permit application for demolition by requiring the applicant to 
provide additional information concerning the house/property; and 

 Reviewing the historic preservation regulations to evaluate if amendments to strengthen the 
regulations are desired.   

 
Building Permit Application for Demolition 
To kick-off its discussion on April 8, 2015 the Historic Preservation Commission (HPC) received 
several examples of building permit applications for demolition used by other North Shore 
communities. Following its discussion the HPC expressed interest in requiring demolition permit 
applicants to submit the following the HPC’s consideration: 
 

 Plat of survey (includes legal description); 
 Elevation pictures of existing structure; 
 Neighborhood aerial map; 
 Prepared statement providing a financial analysis comparing the costs to rehabilitate the home 

and the cost to demolish and build a new house; 
 Elevation drawings of the new house; 
 A written description of the research on the house conducted by the owner and reasons the 

house does not qualify for landmark status; 
 A tree survey; 
 An estimate to relocate the structure that is proposed for demolition;  
 Request property owner provide a statement how best to preserve the Village’s historical and 

architectural character; and 
 Require real estate riders to make buyers aware the house is a landmark. 

 
Legal Counsel has confirmed that the items listed above may be required of the applicant to qualify as 
a complete building permit application for demolition without amending the Municipal Code. Staff 
will share a draft revised application for the HPC’s consideration on Thursday night.  
 
 
 



  

Review of Historic Preservation Regulations   
In April 2015 the Committee-of-the-Whole (COW) directed the HPC to review the Village’s existing 
historic preservation regulations to determine if they continue to meet the Village’s goals.  To kick-off 
this discussion, please find attached a chart summarizing the highlights of historic preservation 
regulations from other North Shore communities.  A copy of the Village’s regulations are also 
attached.  
 
Attachments 

 
A. Historic Preservation Regulations Comparison Chart; and 
B. Historic Preservation Regulations (Chapter 14 of Title 9 of the Municipal Code); and 

 
If any member of the HPC has questions concerning the information provided in this memorandum, or 
would like copies of information previously provided, please feel free to contact me at 847-283-6889. 



Community Eligible Parties
Owner consent 

required
Length of 
Process

Review Decisions Delay for Altering Landmark

Highland 
Park

Commissioner,
Owner,

City Council,
City Manager,

Individual

No 300 days
Alterations require 

Certificate of 
Appropriateness

Binding, although 
owner may apply for 

Cert. of Econ 
Hardship

Cert. of App. takes: 60+ days
Cert. of Econ Hardship takes: 120+ days

Not having time limits exposes 
the City to litigation.

Winnetka Owner Yes
Not 

specified
Review is advisory 

by the HPC

Not binding; option to 
certify landmark and 

make changes 
binding

Maximum of 90 days

Not binding; option to 
certify landmark and 

make changes 
binding

Note: Those communities with non-binding decisions regarding alternations to a landmark will offer "certification" status to home owners to make alterations 
binding.  Those with binding decisions on alterations to a landmark offer Certificates of Appropriateness authorizing those alterations.  If a Certificate of 
Appropriateness is denied, owners may appeal by applying for a Certificate of Economic Hardship.  This process may or may not require the owner to 
pursue rehabilitation grants/loans; denials of Certificates of Economic Hardship may be appealed to the governing authorities. 

Landmark Nominations Alterations/Review Procedures

Mandatory Non demo: 35 days
Mandatory Demo: 120 days 

VB optional extension: 30 days

Owner,
HPC,

Village Board,
Museum

120 days
(possibly 

more)

Alternations require 
Certificate of 

Appropriateness

Binding, although 
owner may apply for 

Cert. of Econ 
Hardship

Not specified.

Not having time limits exposes 
the City to litigation. 

Lake Forest No

Not
specified

Review is advisory 
by the HPC

Glencoe No

Owner,
Commissioner,
City Council,

Local/State/Fed. 
Preservation 

Agency

HISTORIC PRESERVATION LANDMARK DESIGNATION COMPARISONS

Mandatory Non demo: 35 days
Mandatory Demo: 120 days 

VB optional extension: 30 days

No 145 days
Review is advisory 

by the HPC

Not binding; option to 
certify landmark and 

make changes 
binding

Commissioner,
 Owner

Lake Bluff

bstanick
Text Box
ATTACHMENT A



bstanick
Text Box
ATTACHMENT B
















































	VB_03.23.15_13 925 Sheridan Road.pdf
	Application.pdf
	Agenda Item 6_925 N Sheridan Road.pdf
	Att A.pdf
	Item 7_Attachment F.pdf
	925 N Sheridan Rd_Cover Memo.pdf
	925 Sheridan_Attachment A
	Attachment B








